MI:Explore version 5.3

MI:Explore Configuration Guide



GRANTA MI[™] is the leading system for materials information management in engineering organizations. It enables you to control, analyze, and securely share critical corporate data on materials and processes, managing the materials information lifecycle.

www.grantadesign.com

© Granta Design 2018 All rights reserved

CES Selector and GRANTA MI are trademarks of Granta Design Ltd. For other Granta product trademarks, see www.grantadesign.com/smallprint.htm

Safari is a trademark of Apple Inc., registered in the U.S. and other countries. Google® is a registered trademark and Chrome™ is a trademark of Google Inc. Microsoft®, Excel®, PowerPoint®, Internet Explorer®, SQL Server®, Windows®, and Windows Server® are registered trademarks of Microsoft Corporation or its subsidiaries in the United States or other countries. Mozilla® and Firefox® are registered trademarks of the Mozilla Foundation.

Granta Design Ltd. makes reasonable efforts to explicitly acknowledge all trademarks cited in our literature or on our website. If you would like us to add or alter an acknowledgement, please <u>contact us</u>.

Release notes, documentation, and Knowledge Articles for the current and all previous GRANTA MI releases are all available on the Granta Support website. Go to <u>www.grantadesign.com</u> and click SIGN IN to log into your My Granta page, then click **Documentation**.

We welcome your feedback on this document. Please let us know if anything is unclear, if you spot an error, or have an idea for new content, by emailing <u>docs@grantadesign.com</u>

Document version: MIX5.3/01 Published: July 2018

Table of contents

1	Introd	luction5				
2	About	t MI:Explore6				
	2.1	Integration with other applications7				
	2.2	Supported data types7				
3	Applic	Application configuration options9				
	3.1	Defining different data views9				
	3.2	Application title 11				
	3.3	Database, table, and subset to search11				
	3.4	Search panel 12				
	3.5	Collections				
	3.6	Thumbnails				
	3.7	Scatter plots				
	3.8	Curves				
	3.9	Datasheets				
	3.10	Data add and edit functionality22				
	3.11	Reports				
	3.12	Exporters				
	3.13	Options for placement of new records 30				
	3.14	Options for autonaming of new records				
	3.15	Load data on demand				
	3.16	Unit system options				
	3.17	Number formatting settings				
	3.18	Language options				
4	Edit d	ata view configuration using MI:Explore39				
	4.1	Enable Switch data view dialog for users				
5	Mana	ging configuration files with MI:Admin41				
6	MI:Vi	ewer integration42				
7	MI:W	orkflow integration				
8	Теат	center® integration				
	8.1	'Find where used' configuration in MI:Explore				
	8.2	Where Used Teamcenter connection configuration				

9	MI:Ex	plore configuration file reference4	6
	9.1	key 4	7
	9.2	table4	8
	9.3	searchLayout 4	8
	9.4	collectionsDisabled4	9
	9.5	configSwitching4	9
	9.6	curves	0
	9.7	databaseKey 5	0
	9.8	dataSheetLayout5	1
	9.9	default5	1
	9.10	description5	1
	9.11	displayName5	2
	9.12	editableDatasheetLayout5	2
	9.13	exportersDisabled5	2
	9.14	exportersUseCurrentUnitSystem5	2
	9.15	exporterApplicability	3
	9.16	groups5	3
	9.17	loadDataOnDemand5	3
	9.18	logSliders	4
	9.19	newRecordLocation5	4
	9.20	newRecordTransformation, newRecordPaddingOptions5	5
	9.21	primaryImageAttributeName5	7
	9.22	recordType5	7
	9.23	reportsDisabled	8
	9.24	showBlanks	8
	9.25	staticData5	8
	9.26	subset	9
	9.27	tabularEditingEnabled	9
	9.28	workflowEnabled5	9
	9.29	xyChart6	0
10	Samp	le configuration file	1
Арр	oendix /	A. Troubleshooting	3
	A.1 Vie	ew the log file6	3
	A.2 Co	ompatibility View settings in IE116	3
	A.3 En	able pop-ups in your browser	3
Арр	oendix l	B. Using static data files for faster startup64	4

1 Introduction

MI:Explore 5.3 was released with GRANTA MI version 11 update 2. This document is aimed at GRANTA MI administrators or System Administrators who need to carry out the necessary MI:Explore configuration tasks.

For information on how to install MI:Explore using the Installation Manager, see the *GRANTA MI Installation Guide*.

For help on how to use MI:Explore, click the Help button in the top right corner of the application browser window, or click <u>here</u> to open the help in your browser.

2 About MI:Explore

MI:Explore is a web application for finding, visualizing, and entering materials information in a GRANTA MI database, and quickly performing key tasks such as filtering, comparing, and plotting.

Highly configurable via JSON configuration files, different MI:Explore data views can be provided for different user groups in your company, delivering only the data and tools relevant to that user community. Users looking for the full set of tools to query, browse, report on, edit, import, and export data can use the general MI:Viewer web browser user interface.

8 9 10 Mi Explore MyDatabase V Report		12 🗖 🕺
3 4 Search collections curves Search	5 6 7 4 THUMENAILS LIST SCATTER PLOT CURVES	
Q		
Collections		
2		
_		
_		

- Text search find all records that include the specified term in their name or in any of their text attributes, and view them on THUMBNAILS, LIST, SCATTER PLOT, CURVES tabs
- Search filters narrow down search results by applying filters based on attribute values
- Collections group and quickly access 'favorite' records, or records used in a particular project, or with a particular set of properties
- Curves plot functional data curves from the data in the search results
- 5 Thumbnails tab search results displayed in an image thumbnail gallery
- 6 List tab view search results displayed in a list
- Scatter plot tab view search results displayed on a scatter (bubble) plot
- 8 Switch data view change database, table, and layout, and edit configuration settings
- 9 New create new records
- Report generate reports from the selected records
- Export export data in a range of different formats for use in CAE systems
- Preferences change the application theme (colors) and unit settings

See *Section 3, Application configuration options*, to find out how you can configure MI:Explore applications with different data and tools.

2.1 Integration with other applications

MI:Explore can be integrated with other Granta enterprise applications:

- **"Where Used" queries**: users can query instances of assignment of records to parts in Teamcenter[®], where the assignments were made in the NX CAD application using MI:Materials Gateway. See Section 8.
- **MI:Workflow management**: users can launch the Workflow Manager from a selected record within MI:Explore, and view the active workflows that are being progressed on that record. To access Workflow Manager from MI:Explore; see Section **7**.
- **MI:Viewer**: users can open datasheets in MI:Viewer from within an MI:Explore datasheet, allowing them to view and edit the full range of MI data types; see Section *6*.

2.2 Supported data types

The following GRANTA MI attribute types can be used when searching, viewing, plotting, and editing data in MI:Explore:

MI Attribute Type		Search pane	List tab	Scatter Plot tab	Curves tab	Datasheet view	Datasheet edit
Numerical	Integer	Y	Y	Y		Y	Y
	Point (single-value)	Y	Y	Y		Y	Y
	Point (multi-value)	Y	Y			Y	
	Range	Y	Y	Y		Y	Y
Text	Short Text	Y	Y			Y	Y
	Long Text	Y	Y			Y	Y
	Discrete	Y	Y			Y	Y
Functional	Float Functional (point)	Exists	Exists		Y	Exists	
	Float Functional (range)	Exists	Exists		Y	Exists	
	Equations & Logic						
	Discrete Functional						
Media	Picture					Y	Y
	Hyperlink	Exists	Y			Y	Y
	File (embedded media)	Exists	Y			Y	Y
Other	Date	Y	Y	Y		Y	Y
	Logical	Y	Y			Y	Y
	Tabular					Y	Y

In the preceding table:

- "Y" means you can search on, filter, plot, view, or edit values of this attribute type
- "Exists" means you can search and filter on whether the attribute exists on the Search pane, but not on its value; on datasheets, you can see that the attribute exists and view the curves, but you can't edit the data points.
- A blank cell means that attributes of this type are not supported for the specified functionality

3 Application configuration options

The process of configuring MI:Explore will require input from a GRANTA MI expert to decide appropriate values for some settings, and it may also be necessary to modify your GRANTA MI database, for example, to create new layouts and/or subsets for use in MI:Explore.

Application configuration settings for MI:Explore are specified in a number of configuration files in JSON (JavaScript Object Notation) format.

preferences.json specifies system options, and the URLs for other GRANTA MI applications that can be integrated with MI:Explore, allowing users to:

- set the application unit system; see section 3.16
- change the formatting of number separators; see section 3.17
- change the language of the user interface; see section 3.18
- set the path for custom configuration files; see section 5
- o open MI:Viewer datasheets from MI:Explore; see section 6
- access Workflow Manager from MI:Explore; see section 7

preferences.json is located in the settings folder within the MI:Explore installation folder.

Other MI:Explore configuration settings are set in the JSON file stored with each database. These settings determine the data view visible in MI:Explore, and are described in the rest of this section. A number of alternative configurations may be defined in these files, allowing different databases, tables, and attributes to be searched. Users can be permitted to change between data views using the Switch data view dialog (see section 4.1), or by entering the key in the URL.

See Section *5, Managing configuration files with MI:Admin* for information about loading configuration files into MI:Admin. See Section *9, MI:Explore configuration file reference*, for reference information about all the supported mandatory and optional settings. See Section *10, Sample configuration file*, for a sample JSON file.

To query instances of assignment of records to parts in Teamcenter[®], see section 8.

3.1 Defining different data views

MI:Explore is highly-configurable, allowing different data and feature sets to be presented to different user groups in your company. This is done by defining alternate application front-ends, known as "data views", in the MI:Explore configuration files.

Data views are identified by a unique key:

```
{
    "key": "DefaultSearch",
    "displayName" : "Explore Aerospace Materials",
    "default": true,
    "databaseKey": "MI_Training_11.0.0m",
    ...
},
{
    "key": "polymers",
    "displayName" : "Explore Polymers",
```

```
"default": false,
    "databaseKey": " MI_Training_11.0.0m ",
    ...
}
```

To open MI:Explore with a specific data view configuration, the key must be specified using a search-config query string in the URL, for example:

http://<mi_server>/explore/?search-config=polymers

If the search configuration is incorrectly specified in the URL (for example, misspelled), or if the specified search configuration is not found in any configuration files, MI:Explore will open with the default configuration, identified with "default": true; see the first configuration extract in the example above.

Data views may optionally be given a description.. This can be used to record useful information about the view, or to help users identify each data view in the Switch data view dialog.

```
"description": "Explore MaterialUniverse data in the MI:Training database"
```

ning	Switch data vie	W :	•
LLE	Switch to:	MI:Training Materials • Clear	
	Key	training-materials	н
	Description	Explore MaterialUniverse data in the MI:Training database	
	Details		18
1	Database	MI:Training •	1

Data views may be designated a group, to further assist the user in selecting a data view from the Switch data view dialog.

```
"groups": ["Polymers", "On Demand"]
```

Switch data	view					×
Switch to:		Thermoplastics •	J			
Key Description		Metals Alloy steels Aluminum alloys High strength steels				
		Iron Magnesium alloys Polymers Elastomers		Apply	Export	Cancel
	ABS (30% glass fiber, i ABS (extrusion)	Thermoplastics Processes Metal shaping processes Polymer shaping processes				
	ABS (extrusion) ABS (transparent, inject	Processes Metal shaping processes Polymer shaping processes tion molding)				

Each data view may appear in one group, many groups, or no groups. You can limit the data views that a user sees to only those views within a certain group; see section **4**.

3.2 Application title

The name that appears in the application header is specified using the <u>displayName</u> setting in the configuration files. For example:



3.3 Database, table, and subset to search

The database, table, and subset from which MI:Explore will retrieve records are specified using <u>databaseKey</u>, <u>table</u>, and <u>subset</u>. For example:

```
"databaseKey": "MI_Training_11.0.0m",
"table": "MaterialUniverse",
"subset": "Aerospace materials",
```

The database key is optional; if it is not specified, the value defaults to the key of the database that the configuration file is stored with.

Specifying a subset allows the set of records presented in MI:Explore to be narrowed down to only records that are relevant to users using a particular MI:Explore data view. When a subset is specified, search and filter operations in MI:Explore will be limited to only the records in this subset; if no

subset is specified, search and filter operations will be applied to all records in the table. For example, the previous configuration defines the data of interest as metals and alloys records in the *Aerospace materials* subset in the *MaterialUniverse* table of the MI:Training database.

Any new records created in MI:Explore will be placed in the specified subset; see section 3.10, Data add and edit functionality.

3.4 Search panel

When performing searches and filtering search results in MI:Explore, users can specify in the Search panel the values of interest for Range, Point, Integer, Short text, Long text, Discrete, Picture, Logical, and Date attributes. For Functional attributes (point and range) and File attributes, the search/filter criteria may specify whether or not a record includes the attribute (*exists*), but not its value.

The attributes available in the Search panel in MI:Explore, and the headings under which they are grouped, are determined by the layout specified by <u>searchLayout</u> in the configuration files. An additional setting, <u>logSliders</u>, allows you to configure the use of logarithmic scales on slider controls in the Search panel.

3.4.1 Available attributes for searching

EARCH COLLECTIONS		
nergy		*
Secondary sorting energy (MJ/kg)		
Primary sorting energy (MJ/kg)		
 ✓ 0.3 		
Collection energy (MJ/kg)		
0.2		-11
002		
CO2 footprint, source (kg/MJ)		
0.06		
SEARCH COLLECTIONS		
General properties		*
Density (kg/m^3)		11
7590	8590	
Price (USD/kg)		
4.4		
	7.8	
	7.8	
Composition overview	7.8	
Composition overview Composition (summary) Type your filter text here	7.8	
Composition overview Composition (summary) Type your filter text here	7.8	
Composition overview Composition (summary) Type your filter text here Bio-data	7.8	
Composition overview Composition (summary) Type your filter text here Bio-data RoHS (EU) compliant grades?	7.8	

"searchLayout": "End of life",

In this example, a layout called *End of life* defines the headings *Energy* and *CO2* and the attributes that appear under them – *Secondary sorting energy, CO2 footprint,* and so on.

"searchLayout": "Materials search",

Here, a layout called *Materials search* defines the headings including *General properties* and *Composition overview*, and the attributes that appear beneath them – *Density, Price*, and so on.

3.4.2 Link groups

Searching across more than one database, table, and subset is not supported in MI:Explore. To filter search results, you can use link groups, allowing users to apply compatibility criteria to exclude results that are not compatible with records in other tables, for example, selected material specifications, processes, producers, coatings, or end of life options.

This is done using *Record link groups*, which capture relationships between related records in different tables within a GRANTA MI database.

For example, in the MI:Training database, records in the *Tensile Test Data* table include links to related records in the *Metals Pedigree* and *Tensile Statistical Data* tables:



To show only tensile test data records with certain batch and/or tensile statistical properties in MI:Explore, users can browse the linked table and select the relevant linked records:



3.4.3 Logarithmic sliders

Most material properties extend over several orders of magnitude, so logarithmic scales can be used on slider controls in MI:Explore. This is configured using <u>logSliders</u>:

"logSliders": true	Slider controls will use a logarithmic scale when the data spread is larger than one order of magnitude
"logSliders": false	Slider controls will always use a linear scale

3.5 Collections

Collections work like "favorites", and can be used to organize and access records that users work with frequently, or to group records that are used in a particular project, or that have a particular set of properties.

Mi Tool Steels					Preference H Ab	ces 🌣 elp ? out î
SEARCH COLLECTIONS	LIST					
Create Delete Import Export Details	Name	Density (kg/m^3)	Price (USD/kg)	Young's modulus	Flexural strength (
State State	Tool steel, tungsten	8590 - 8760	18.3 - 20.1	234 - 246	2070 - 2450	*
Filter T	Tool steel, tungsten	8110 - 8280	17.9 - 19.7	225 - 236	2210 - 2620	
	Tool steel, tungsten	8600 - 8770	22 - 24.2	234 - 246	2140 - 2450	
Chromium alloys	Tool steel, tungsten	8670 - 8840	22 - 24.2	234 - 246	2000 - 2370	
Molybdenum alloys	Tool steel, tungsten	8810 - 8980	24.7 - 27.1	236 - 248	2000 - 2370	
Silionnes 2	Tool steel, tungsten	8350 - 8520	17.5 - 19.3	227 - 238	2000 - 2370	
	Tool steel, tungsten	8590 - 8760	17.2 - 18.9	219 - 231	2000 - 2370	
Tungsten alloys	Tool steel, tungsten	8200 - 8370	11.1 - 12.2	218 - 229	879 - 1630	
	Tool steel, tungsten	8210 - 8370	14.9 - 16.4	227 - 239	849 - 1160	
	Tool steel, tungsten	8280 - 8450	6.06 - 6.66	221 - 232	973 - 1520	
	Tool steel, tungsten	8350 - 8520	13.3 - 14.6	222 - 234	820 - 1280	
	Tool steel, tungsten	8180 - 8350	14.9 - 16.4	227 - 239	1200 - 1680	
	Tool steel, tungsten	8590 - 8760	17.2 - 18.9	232 - 244	1120 - 1860	
					0 Selected Showing	13 of 82

Collections can be easily created, deleted, and shared with other MI:Explore users. To add records to a collection, you select them in one of the tabs, then right-click and select **Add to collection**.

The Collections feature may be enabled and disabled in MI:Explore using the <u>collectionsDisabled</u> setting in the configuration file. When Collections are enabled, a COLLECTIONS tab appears beside the SEARCH tab, as shown in the screenshot above; when disabled, the Collections tab does not appear at all.

Note

MI:Explore searches on a single table at a time (specified using the <u>table</u> key in the configuration files). However, collections may contain records from more than one table, and may also contain records that a user does not have permission to access, for example, when a collection has been imported. In these cases:

• Records in other tables (that is, not in the table that MI:Explore is currently searching) will not be visible when the collection is viewed.

- Records that a user does not have sufficient permission to access will not not be visible when the collection is viewed.
- Collections that contain only records that are not visible are shown in italics on the COLLECTIONS tab (see the *Silicones 2* collection in the example above)

3.6 Thumbnails

The THUMBNAILS tab in MI:Explore is an optional tab that can display search results using an image attribute. Images are displayed as a thumbnail gallery:

THUMBNAILS				
Serve part of the server serve				Primary image attribute
Solvent bonding	Staple - metal	Staple - nonmetal	Rivet	Record name
		National Contraction		
Nut and bolt	Sewing	Press fit	Snap fit	
Foreites Boys Porsites	Proster	Broadion Physical Boost Control Physical Boo		

The display of images on the THUMBNAILS tab in MI:Explore is configured using the primaryImageAttributeName setting, to specify the name of the primary image attribute.

The primary image is used on the thumbnails view of the search results (see image above). The primary image is also visible on the header of the record datasheet, for example:

Laser welding	g of thermoplastics	
General		Â
Designation	Joining: welding, fusion, power beam	
Tradenames		
ample:	$\boldsymbol{\Delta}$ laser heam with infrared or ontical fre	auency is

"primaryImageAttributeName":	"Process	schematic",	
------------------------------	----------	-------------	--

If no primary image attribute is specified in any records, then the THUMBNAILS tab will not appear in the application.

3.7 Scatter plots

Scatter (XY) plots are displayed on the SCATTER PLOT tab in MI:Explore. Users can change the x- and y- axis attributes and scale (linear or log) by clicking the **Settings** button \square on this tab.



The attributes that are available for selecting as x- or y-axes are those attributes defined by the search layout. Attributes of type integer, date, range, and point are permitted (point attributes may not be multi-valued). Any other attribute types in the search layout will not be available for use as a plot axis.

A number of plot settings can be configured under xyChart in the configuration file:

- The attributes used initially on the x- and y-axes on the SCATTER PLOT tab are specified with the xAttribute and yAttribute configuration fields.
- The default scale (linear or logarithmic) used initially for the x- and y-axes are specified with the xAxisLogarithmic and yAxisLogarithmic) configuration fields.
- The Settings button and panel can be hidden, allowing you to prevent MI:Explore users from changing any plot settings (by setting preventAxisChange to true).

```
Example:
```

```
"xyChart": {
    "xAttribute": "Young's modulus",
    "yAttribute": "Tensile strength",
    "preventAxisChange": true,
    "xAxisLogarithmic": true,
    "yAxisLogarithmic": true
}
```

3.8 Curves

Where records include functional data, curves can be plotted on the CURVES tab, for example:



Users can plot curves from one or multiple records, choosing the y-axis attribute and the x-axis parameter, selecting the axis scales (linear or log, if applicable), and adjusting the parameter values to show more or less data on the plot.

The attributes available for plotting are any series functional attributes included in the search layout; gridded functional data cannot be plotted. Point data and range data can be plotted.

A number of default settings can be configured under <u>curves</u> in the configuration file:

- The attribute used initially on the y-axis on the **CURVES** tab is specified with the yAttribute configuration field.
- The parameter used initially on the x-axis on the **CURVES** tab is specified with the xParameter configuration field.
- The default scale (linear or logarithmic) used initially for the x- and y-axes are specified with the xAxisLogarithmic and yAxisLogarithmic configuration fields.

Example:

```
"curves": {
    "yAttribute": "Young's modulus",
    "xParameter": "Temperature",
    "xAxisLogarithmic": false,
    "yAxisLogarithmic": true
}
```

3.9 Datasheets

The content and functionality available in MI:Explore datasheets is configured in the configuration file:

- You can specify the layouts that define the headings and attributes that appear in datasheets; see section *3.9.1* below.
- You can specify whether or not attributes that have no value will be shown in datasheets; see section 3.9.2 below.

In addition, you can control the buttons that appear on datasheets:

- Edit button; see section 3.10, Data add and edit.
- Access full data button (configured in preferences.json); see section 6, MI:Viewer integration.

3.9.1 Layouts - datasheet attributes and headings

Layouts are used to define the attributes and headings that appear in datasheets in both GRANTA MI and in MI:Explore:

- <u>dataSheetLayout</u> specifies a layout that defines the headings and attributes shown when viewing datasheets in MI:Explore.
- editableDatasheetLayout specifies a layout that defines the headings and attributes shown when adding or editing data in MI:Explore; this may be a different set of attributes than shown when viewing the datasheet. The layout may also identify certain attributes as read-only, meaning they can be viewed but not modified, or required, meaning they must be completed in order to save the record.

Examples

Cobalt [7440-48	-4]
Datasheet Reports	
General Information	<u>^</u>
Chemical name	Cobalt
CAS number	7440-48-4
EC number	231-158-0
Molecular formula	Co
Synonyms & tradenames	Aquacat; C.I. 77320; CCRIS 1575; CI 77320; Cobalt; Cobalt-59; HSDB 519; Kobalt; Kobalt [German, Polish]; NCI-C60311; Super cobalt;
Color	Cobalt metal is a shiny, silvery metal
Smell	odourless
REACH information	
SVHC under REACH?	No
Uses	
Typical uses	In the glass and ceramic industries small quantities of cobalt oxide are used to neutralize the yellow tint resulting from the presence of iron in glass, pottery, and enamels. Larger quantities are used to impart a blue
	Access full data Close

H Ferrite YBM-5BE Datasheet Reports Exporters Composition overview Compositional summary MO-6Fe2O3, where M represents barium, strontium or a combination of the two, according to grade Form Bulk material Material family Ceramic (technical) Base material Oxide Price 0.422 - 0.463 USD/lb Price 126 - 144 USD/ft^3 Price per unit volume Physical properties Density 0.173 - 0.18 lb/in^3 Mechanical properties Compressive strength 100 - 103 ksi Thermal properties Edit Access full data Close "dataSheetLayout": "All substances"

The layout named *All substances* defines the headings *General information*, *REACH information*, and *Uses*, and the attributes that appear beneath them.

"dataSheetLayout": "All attributes"

Here, a material record in the Material Universe database is viewed using the layout called *Magnetic materials*, which defines the headings *Composition overview*, *Price*, and *Physical properties*, as well as the set of attributes that appear beneath each heading – *Form*, *Base material*, *Density*, *Compressive strength*, and so on.

[Editing] H Ferrite	YBM-5BE 🖋
Price	í
Price	0.4218409073443455 - 0.4626642087484121 USD/lb
Price per unit volume	126.2931358003199 - 144.1327491532799 USD/ft*3
Physical properties	
Density	0.1731554828438592 - 0.18016177455508 lb/in^3
Mechanical properties	5
Young's modulus	- 10^6 psi
Notes	
Yield strength (elastic limit)	- ksi
Notes	
	Save Cancel

"editableDataSheetLayout": "Magnetic
materials (Edit)"

Here, the magnetic material record viewed earlier is now being edited: a different layout is used to define the properties that appear on the datasheet (compare this with the headings and attributes visible when viewing the datasheet, above).

3.9.2 Showing/hiding attributes with no value

The <u>showBlanks</u> setting controls whether attributes with no value set are shown or hidden when datasheets are viewed in MI:Explore.

When false, attributes with no data value are hidden when viewing datasheets; when true, empty attributes are shown.

howBlanks"	: false,	"showBla	anks": true,
Aluminum, 7075	5, wrought, T6	Aluminu	m, 7075, wrought, T6
Datasheet Reports I	Exporters	Datasheet	Reports Exporters
General properties		General pr	operties
Designation	7075	Designation	7075
Density	0.1 - 0.102 lb/in^3	Density	0.1 - 0.102 lb/in^3
Price	1.37 - 1.51 USD/lb	Price	1.37 - 1.51 USD/lb
Material form	Other	Material form	Other
Composition overvi	ew	Tradenames	
Composition (summary)	Al/5.6Zn/2.5Mg/1.6CuCr	Compositio	on overview
Base	AI (Aluminum)	Composition ((summary) Al/5.6Zn/2.5Mg/1.6CuCr
Composition detail	(metals, ceramics and glasses)	Base	AI (Aluminum)
- Al (aluminum)	89 - 92 %	Compositio	on detail (metals, ceramics and glasses)
Cr (chromium)	0 - 1.6 %	Ag (silver)	
Cu (copper)	0 - 1.6 %	AI (aluminum)) 89 - 92 %
Mg (magnesium)	2.5 %	Al2O3 (alumin	na)
Zn (zinc)	5.6 %	B (boron)	
Bio-data		Be (beryllium))
RoHS (EU) compliant	Yes	C (carbon)	
grades?		Ce (Cerium)	
Mechanical propert	ies	Co (cobalt)	
Young's modulus	10 - 11 10^6 psi	Cr (chromium	1) 0 - 1.6 %
Young's modulus with	Plot curves	Cu (copper)	0 - 1.6 %
temperature		Fe (iron)	
Comp. Young's modulus	Plot curves	· · ·	

Note that the showBlanks setting only applies when *viewing* datasheets; when *editing* datasheets, all attributes in the layout are always shown.

3.10 Data add and edit functionality

3.10.1 Enabling data and edit capability

To enable MI:Explore users to add and edit data, the <u>editableDatasheetLayout</u> setting is used in the configuration file.

This setting <u>both</u> enables/disables creation of new records and editing of data, <u>and</u> specifies the layout used when entering or editing data.

When editableDatasheetLayout is specified:

• The **New** button appears on the toolbar; users with the necessary permissions can click this to add new records.



• An Edit button appears on datasheets, allowing users with the necessary permissions to edit data values.



The specified layout defines the headings and attributes shown when entering or editing data (see Section 3.9.1) and may also identify certain attributes as **read-only**, meaning they can be viewed but not modified, or **required**, meaning they must be completed in order to save the record.

If editableDatasheetLayout is not specified, the **New** button will not appear on the toolbar and the **Edit** button will not appear in MI:Explore datasheets.

Note that, to allow users to create new records, a <u>subset</u> must also be specified in the configuration file.

Some addition configuration is required if users will need to edit tabular attributes; see section *3.10.2*.

Access controlled tables

Note that MI:Explore users who need to edit version-controlled records must be members of the GRANTA MI *Power User* system security role.

This is because MI:Explore automatically tries to release new record versions; if a user does not have sufficient privileges to be able to release records (i.e. they are not members of the *Power User* role, or higher), the record will be updated and the new record version created, but it cannot be released, and so the user will see an error.

3.10.2 Viewing and editing tabular data

Tabular attributes are used in GRANTA MI to store complex data, with data points (simple numeric, text, media, logical, or date data) organized into columns and rows; tabular attributes may include local data as well as links to data stored in other tables.

Viewing tabular data in MI:Explore

When a tabular attribute is included in the layout specified in <u>dataSheetLayout</u>, an **Open table** option will appear on the datasheet, enabling users to view the data. For example:

Nick	el-Cr-Co a	lloy, IN-939), as cast					
F000 (contact	INU						
Guida	nce for MRI Safety	Low Risk for F	Potential Interactio	n				
Restr	icted substar	ices						
Restrio associ materi	cted substances iated with this ial	⊞ Open table			- 1			
Restrict used in of this	cted substances n the manufacture material	⊞ Open table	,					
Resti may	Restricted s	ubstances as	sociated with	n this materia	l			
manu	Substance name	CAS number	Amount (%)	Legislation name	Legislation rating	Category	EC number	
Subs	Tungsten	7440-33-7	2	ETUC Priority List Dodd-Frank Act	Caution Caution	Incorporated	231-143-9	<u>^</u>
-	Tantalum	7440-25-7	1.4	Dodd-Frank Act	Caution	Incorporated	231-135-5	
1								-
								Close

Adding and editing tabular data in MI:Explore

The ability to edit tabular data in MI:Explore is controlled with the tabularEditingEnabled setting in the configuration file.

"tabularEditingEnabled": true

Tabular data will be editable.

"tabularEditingEnabled": false

Tabular data will not be editable.

When tabular data editing is enabled, and the layout specified in <u>editableDatasheetLayout</u> includes a tabular attribute, **Edit table** or **Add table** options will appear on the editable datasheet for that attribute. For example:

🔚 search json 🔀	
<pre>""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""</pre>	[Editing] Nickel-Cr-Co alloy, IN-939, as cast Restricted substances
"tabularEditingEnabled": true - }	Restricted substances associated with this material
Tabular data add and	Restricted substances that may be associated with this material
edit options in MI:Explore editable datasheet	Restricted substances used in the manufacture of this material
uutusneet	Restricted substances that may be used in the manufacture of this material
	Substance declaration Yes No available?
	Restricted substances risk indicators
	Save Cancel

3.10.3 Editing tabular data linking values

Tabular attributes in GRANTA MI may include data from other tables, as well as local data. To include data from other records, each row of tabular data uses the value of a **linking attribute** to link to the relevant record in the **linked table**.

For example, in the *Product Risk* database *MaterialUniverse* table, the tabular attribute *Restricted substances associated with this material* is linked to the *Restricted Substances* table via the CAS number *linking attribute* value.



The linking value connects the tabular data row in the *MaterialUniverse* table to a record in the *Restricted Substances* table, allowing data values from the *Restricted Substances* record to be included in the tabular data row, for example:

ckel-Cr-C	o alloy, IN	1-939, as	Material cast	Universe ta	ble				Chemical name: CAS number: EC number: Legislations restrict	Tungsten 7440-33-7 231-143-9 ting its use
stricted su	ostances ass	ociated wit	h this material	1	1		1		Legislation name	Legislation rating
ungsten	CAS number 7440-33-7	Amount (%)	Legislation name ETUC Priority List Dodd-Frank Act	Legislation rating Caution Caution	Incorporated	EC number	Linking value (CAS number) 7440-33-7		ETUC Priority List Dodd-Frank Act	Caution Caution
antalum	7440-25-7	1.4	Dodd-Frank Act	Caution	Incorporated	231-135-5	7440-25-7			
									Tantalum	
									Chemical name: CAS number: EC number: Legislations restric:	Tantalum 7440-25-7 231-135-5 ting its use
									Legislation name	Legislation rating
									Dodd-Frank Act	Caution

6	– [Editing] Legislat	ions restricting its	use		Preferences 🕻
s		Edit the data in t	his row		
S	Amount (kg)	Amount	-	kg	Value (Legislation ID)
		Threshold	%		
C		Notes			
		Linking Value (Legislation ID)	Use this value: Fetch the value from this record: None selected T		
	Dacat		Filter X	cel	e Reset table Close
	Reset				Showing 8 o

In MI:Explore, users can edit linking values in tabular data attributes by typing in the value, or by selecting a record from which the linking value can be retrieved. For example:

3.11 Reports

Where reports from the MI:Reports package are installed in your GRANTA MI environment, any reports that analyze a list of records can be run from within MI:Explore via a **Report** option on the toolbar.

Mi Explore Materials	Report Export	
SEARCH COLLECTIONS		THUMBNAILS LIST SO

To enable or disable the Reports functionality in MI:Explore, edit the <u>reportsDisabled</u> option in the configuration file:

"reportsDisabled": true	The Report option will not appear in the toolbar.
"reportsDisabled": false	The Report option will appear in the toolbar.

When reports are enabled:

• A **Report** button appears on the toolbar. Users can click this to open a dialog where they can select and run a report on all records, or on only the selected records:



• A **Reports** tab appears on record datasheets showing the reports that can be run on that record:

Therma	l spray	, Plasm	a spray, Cr3C2-NiCr	
Datasheet	Reports	Exporters		
Run a rep Available re	ort ports:			
📕 Data C	omparison	Report	?	
📕 Datash	eet report		?	

3.12 Exporters

Materials data can be exported from GRANTA MI in a range of different formats for use in FE packages such as Abaqus, ANSYS, or NastranNX. Where FEA exporters are available in your GRANTA MI database, these can be run from within MI:Explore via the **Export** option on the toolbar.

3.12.1 Enabling exporters

To enable or disable the exporters functionality in MI:Explore, edit the <u>exportersDisabled</u> setting in the configuration file:

"exportersDisabled": true	The Export option will not appear in the toolbar.

"exportersDisabled": false The **Export** option will appear in the toolbar.

When the exporters functionality is enabled:

• An **Export** button appears on the toolbar. Users can click this to open a dialog where they can select one of the available exporters, and export data from the selected records:

All items (384) Only selected items (5) Available packages: Available packages: Abaqus 6 ANSYS Workbench 14 ANSYS Workbench 15 CATIA V5 Creo Parametric 2 Nastran NX 10.0 Simple failure Export Close	_	Export data	×
Available packages: Abaqus 6 Abaqus 6 ANSYS Workbench 14 ANSYS Workbench 15 CATIA V5 Creo Parametric 2 Nastran NX 10.0 Simple failure Export Close	∎ ort	All items (384) Only selected items (5)	
I Abaqus 6 ANSYS Workbench 14 ANSYS Workbench 15 CATIA V5 Creo Parametric 2 Nastran NX 10.0 Simple failure Export Close		Available packages:	
Abaqus 6 ANSYS Workbench 14 ANSYS Workbench 15 CATIA V5 Creo Parametric 2 Nastran NX 10.0 NX 10.0 Export Close		1	
ANSYS Workbench 14 ANSYS Workbench 15 CATIA V5 Creo Parametric 2 Nastran NX 10.0 NX 10.0 Export Close Close		Abaqus 6	4
ANSYS Workbench 15 CATIA V5 Creo Parametric 2 Nastran NX 10.0 NX 37 Simple failure		ANSYS Workbench 14	
CATIA V5 Creo Parametric 2 Nastran NX 10.0 Simple failure 2 Export Close		ANSYS Workbench 15	
Creo Parametric 2 Nastran NX 10.0 Simple failure		CATIA V5	
Nastran NX 10.0 Simple failure		Creo Parametric 2	
NX 10.0 Simple failure ? Export Close		Nastran	
Simple failure (2) Export Close		NX 10.0	
Export Close		Simple failure	?
Export Close			
		Export CM	ose

• An **Exporters** tab appears on record datasheets showing the packages and exporters that can be used to export the record data:

MP35N, Solution treated and cold drawn, Bar, Thickness: Up to 1.001 in, AMS 5844, S basis		
Datasheet Exporters		
Export data		
Available packages:		
Abaqus 6		
ANSYS Workbench v12 onwards		
CATIA V5		
Autodesk Inventor 2012		
Pro/ENGINEER Wildfire 5.0		
Pro/ENGINEER Wildfire 4.0		
SolidWorks 2011		

3.12.2 Export units

MI:Explore will select a unit system to use when exporting data, either:

- the unit system specified in the exporter configuration file, or
- the current unit system specified in the user's MI:Explore preferences.

To specify the required exporter unit system option, edit the <u>exportersUseCurrentUnitSystem</u> setting in the configuration file:

"exportersUseCurrentUnitSystem": true	The exporter will use the current unit system specified in the MI:Explore preferences (but note
	that this unit system may not necessarily be supported by the exporter).
<pre>"exportersUseCurrentUnitSystem": false</pre>	The exporter will use the unit system specified in its own .exp file definition.

3.12.3 Hiding application-specific exporters

FEA exporters in a GRANTA MI database may be configured for use with specific applications via a setting in the exporter configuration (.exp) file, for example:



This <Applicability> tag in the exporter config file is used to ensure that only relevant exporters are shown when users are exporting data in MI:Materials Gateway and MI:Viewer: exporters configured for use with Gateway do not appear in MI:Viewer and so cannot be selected, and vice versa.

Exporters can also be filtered in MI:Explore, ensuring that users only ever see relevant exporters. To do this, the value of the exporterApplicability setting in the configuration file must match the value of the <Applicability> tag in the exporter configuration file. For example, with this configuration:

"exporterApplicability": "MIViewer"

only exporters that have an <Applicability> tag value of *MIViewer* (as in the Abaqus example on the right above) will appear in the list of available exporters in MI:Explore.

Note:

• If the exporter .exp config file does not include an <Applicability> tag, the exporter will always be shown in MI:Explore.

• If the exporterApplicability setting is missing from the configuration file, all exporters in the database are shown.

3.13 Options for placement of new records

When an editable datasheet is specified in the configuration file, users with sufficient permissions can create new records. Records created in MI:Explore can be placed into specific folders in the GRANTA MI database tree structure. For example:

"newRecordLocation": "Metals and alloys/New/"

This is configured by specifying the destination folder path using <u>newRecordLocation</u>.

- The folder will be created if it does not already exist.
- If not specified, new records will be placed in the top-level (root) folder.
- To create records, users must have write permission to the parent folder.

As well as literal strings, the path specified in newRecordLocation can include attribute names; when a new record is added to the database, the value of the attribute is then used in the record path. For example, the 2nd line below will place new records in the folder determined by the value of the Discrete attribute *Base*, as specified by the user.

Example:

The new record location configuration:

"newRecordLocation": "Metals and alloys/NEW RECORDS/{Base}",

Value for the Base attribute (a required attribute) is specified when creating the new record:

[Editing] New allo	*			
Composition overview	V			^
Composition (summary)				
Base	Ti (Titanium) ▼	*		
Composition detail (m	Filter		×	
Ag (silver)	Te (Tellurium) Ti (Titanium)	~	•	%
AI (aluminum)	TI (Thallium) U (Uranium)			%
Al2O3 (alumina)	V (Vanadium) W (Tungsten) Y (Yttrium) Zn (Zinc)		•	% ▼ ncel

The new record is placed in the specified folder structure:



For more detailed information and additional examples, see Section 9.19.

3.14 Options for autonaming of new records

Automatic naming and numbering conventions can be configured for records created in MI:Explore using a number of configuration settings the configuration file.

A system of transforms can be used to construct the new record name, for example, to:

- Take two attribute values and concatenate them into a third attribute value;
- Increment the value of an integer attribute;
- Pad the integer attribute to a fixed length string;
- Concatenate two attributes and write them into the record name.

A number of useful transforms are supplied as part of the Granta Web Platform; the system is extensible, however, and you can write your own.

Record Transform	Function	Standard Names	Mapped to attribute of type	Required?
Counter	Increments an integer attribute with every new record created	Counter	Integer	Y
Id	Concatenates two	Id_Prefix	Discrete	Ν
	attribute values into	Id_Suffix	Integer, Short text	N
	a third attribute	Id	Short text	Y
RecordNameConcatenator	neConcatenator Concatenates two attribute values into	Name_Prefix	Integer, Short text, Discrete	Y
the record name	Name_Suffix	Integer, Short text, Discrete	Ν	

Table 1. Available transforms

If a required attribute is missing, the transform will fail. If a non-required attribute is missing, the transform will succeed but the concatenation will be incomplete.

3.14.1 The Id transform

This transform concatenates two attribute values into a third attribute.

Record Transform	Standard Names	Attribute type	Required?
	Id_Prefix	Discrete	Ν
Id	Id_Suffix	Integer or Short text	Ν
	Id	Short text	Y

The **Id_Prefix** and **Id_Suffix** standard named attributes are both optional. If neither is supplied, the result will be that the **Id** standard named attribute will be empty.

Example



To set this up:

- 1. Set up three standard named attributes: Id, Id_Prefix, and Id_Suffix.
- 2. Add the **Id** transform to the list of transforms in the configuration file:

"newRecordTransformation": ["Id"]

3. When a new record is created, the **Id** attribute in the record is populated automatically from the values specified in the other two attributes.

Text in parentheses

If the value of the **Id_Prefix** standard named attribute is a string containing a set of parentheses (), then only the substring within the brackets is concatenated with the **Id_Suffix** standard named attribute to produce the value written into the **Id** standard named attribute.

For example, for an **Id_Prefix** standard named attribute "Company", with a value of "ACME Corp (ACM)", only the string within parentheses, "ACM", is included in the **Id**.

Company	Standard name	mapped to	Attribute		Example value
ACME Corp (ACM) Tyrell (TYR)			discrete_attribute		
Stark Industries (SIA) Cyberdyne (CYB)	f "Id_suffix" —		integer_attribute		271 (specified by user)
	"ld" —		short_text_attribut	ıte	ACM271 (autogenerated)

3.14.2 The Counter transform

This transform increments an integer attribute with every new record created.

Transform	Standard Names	Mapped to attribute of type	Required?
Counter	Counter	Integer	Y

Example:



To set this up:

- 1. Set up one standard named attribute, **Counter**, of type integer.
- 2. Add Counter to the list of transforms in the configuration file:

```
"newRecordTransformation": ["Counter"]
```

Each time a new record is created, the value of the **Counter** attribute is incremented.

3.14.3 The RecordNameConcatenator transform

This transform concatenates two attribute values into the record name.

Record Transform	Standard Names	Attribute type	Required?
RecordNameConcatenator	Name_Prefix	Integer, Short text, Discrete	Y
	Name_Suffix	Integer, Short text, Discrete	Ν

The **Name_Suffix** standard named attribute is optional. If it is not supplied, the resulting record name will include only the **Name_Prefix** value.

Example:



To set this up:

- 1. Set up two standard named attributes (Integer, Short text, or Discrete) to use for the first and second part of the record name; for example, **Name_Prefix** and **Name_Suffix**.
- 2. Add RecordNameConcatenator to the list of transforms in the configuration file:

"newRecordTransformation": ["RecordNameConcatenator"]

3. When a new record is created, it is automatically named by concatenating the two attribute values, separated by a hyphen (-).

3.14.4 Combining two transforms

Multiple transforms may be specified in the configuration file; they are applied in order. For example, here, the Counter and RecordNameConcatenator transforms are combined:



3.14.5 Combining three transforms

All three Transforms may be specified in the configuration file. For example, here, the Counter, ID, and RecordNameConcatenator transforms are used:



3.14.6 Additional transform examples

Text in parentheses example 2

If the value of the **Id_Prefix** includes text within parentheses (), that text will be used in the record name and not the whole string. For example:



Padding characters

The **Id** transform may include padding on integer attributes. For example, in this configuration, the numeric counter part of the record name is padded with zeroes to a length of 6 characters:



3.14.7 More information

See Section 9.20 for details of how to specify these configuration options in the configuration file.

The **Counter**, **Id**, and **RecordNameConcatenator** transforms are available in the Granta Web Platform. Additional custom transforms may be developed using the <u>IRecordTransformer</u> interface; see the Web Platform SDK documentation for details.

3.15 Load data on demand

Data in MI:Explore can be loaded on demand, or on startup:

- **On demand**: data is loaded when required. This reduces the startup time of the application when using large datasets.
- **On startup**: all data is loaded when the application is started, or when switching to a different search configuration URL. This is recommended for small datasets.

To enable or disable the data on demand mode in MI:Explore, edit the loadDataOnDemand setting in the configuration file:

"loadDataOnDemand":	true	Data will load into the application when required
"loadDataOnDemand":	false	All data will load on startup

Some UI differences occur when data on demand is enabled. When the loadDataOnDemand functionality is enabled:

• A **Search** button appears on the search panel. Users set their search criteria, and then click Search to load the results from the server.

When the loadDataOnDemand functionality is disabled:

• All data is pre-loaded from the server at the startup of the application. As users change their search criteria, the results update instantaneously.

Similarly, the Curves panel is less responsive in data on demand mode, as data has to be loaded from the server before updating the curve plot.

3.16 Unit system options

Unit system options for MI:Explore are specified in preferences.json:

- The default unit system used in the MI:Explore application can be specified.
- The **Unit system** option in the **Edit Preferences** dialog can be shown, allowing users to select a different unit system, or hidden, preventing users from using a different unit system.



In this extract from a preferences.json file, the **Unit system** user interface preferences option is turned on, and *US Customary* is set as the default unit system:

```
"unitSystem": {
    "userVisible": true,
    "defaultValue": "US Customary"
},
```

Where the data is stored in a different unit system, MI:Explore accesses services in GRANTA MI to perform unit conversions, using information in the current database.

When exporting data, the MI:Explore unit system can be used, if the exporter permits it, or the exporter's own unit system can be used; this is configured using the <u>exportersUseCurrentUnitSystem</u> setting, see section 3.12.2, Export units.

3.17 Number formatting settings

Number separator settings are specified in preferences.json:

- Recommended group separators are space, comma, period, or none.
- Recommended decimal separators are comma or period.

For example, 1,234,567.89 has comma digit group separators and a period decimal separator.

To allow users to edit their number formatting settings, use the numberFormatting setting in preferences.json to specify their options:

```
"preferences": {
    ...
    "numberFormatting": {
        "userVisible": true,
        "defaultValue": {
            "groupSeparator": [ "\u2009", ",", ".", "" ],
            "decimalSeparator": [ ",", "." ]
        }
    }
}
```

Setting userVisible to true enables the user to choose their group and decimal separators from the Preferences dialog. The options they see are those listed under groupSeparator and decimalSeparator. You can enforce the formatting of separators by setting userVisible to false and entering only one separator type in each array.

If the numberFormatting setting is missing, MI:Explore will use the default operating system settings.

3.18 Language options

The display language for MI:Explore is specified in preferences.json, using the language setting :

```
"preferences": {
    ...
    "language": {
        "userVisible": true,
        "defaultValue": "en"
    }
}
```

Setting userVisible to true enables the user to choose their language in the Preferences dialog. You can enforce the language by setting userVisible to false and specifying one defaultValue. Available language options are:

- en
- fr

4 Edit data view configuration using MI:Explore

Using MI:Explore, users can select which data view to use from the Switch data view dialog. They can also use this dialog to customize their data view, and to export their customized view as a configuration file.

Mi MI:Training Mater	ials the New Report Export		
SEARCH COLLECTIONS		LIST SCATTER PL	
Search	Switch data view		×
Search			
Collections	Switch to:	MI:Training Materials	
None selected	Key	training-materials	
•	Description	Explore MaterialUniverse data in the MI:Training database	
General properties	Details		
	Database	MI:Training v	
	Table	MaterialUniverse •	
	Layout	All bulk materials	
	Name	MI: Training Materials	
	Advanced options		
	General		-
	Subset	All bulk materials	(?)
	Datasheet	Disable Use Layout	(?)
	Load data on demand	On demand On startup	?
		Apply Export	Cancel

To launch the Switch data view dialog, click 🛽 next to the display name.

The options visible here correspond with settings in the application configuration file.

When you click Apply, the URL updates to reflect the new data view.

To save a custom data view, export it from MI:Explore and use MI:Admin to store it with the appropriate database. For further information, see section *5, Managing configuration files with MI:Admin*.

4.1 Enable Switch data view dialog for users

You can configure MI:Explore to allow users to switch data views, edit data views, or you can limit the data views a user sees, by editing the visibility of the Switch data view dialog and the options available on it. The visibility of the dialog is set using the configSwitching setting in the configuration file. There are five possible values:

configSwitching value	Options visible in MI:Explore to users			
Value	Switch data view	Edit database, table, and layout	Edit advanced options	
hidden				
keyOnly	2			
keyOrData	2	?		
advanced	2	?	2	
keyInGroup	?*			

*Users can only switch data view between views in a certain group.

For example:

"configSwitching": "keyOnly"

5 Managing configuration files with MI:Admin

MI:Explore configuration files are managed using MI:Admin. They are stored with the database they apply to, in a subfolder under Configurations.

To view these search configurations in MI:Explore, the location of the JSON configuration files must be specified in preferences.json, using the configurationsPath setting. The preferences.json file by default contains a path to "Explore":

"appName":	"Explore",	
•••		
"configurat	tionsPath":	"Explore",

If you have custom configuration files that you want to use in MI:Explore, create a subfolder called "Explore", and import your files into this folder:

Mi				MI:Admin (@	localhost)			_ 🗆 🗙
<u>S</u> erver <u>E</u> dit	<u>T</u> ools <u>O</u> ptio	ns <u>H</u> elp						
Ö.	l 🖻	<u> </u>	8					
Schema	Profiles	Access Control	Data Updater					MI
Current Databa	se: MI: Training	g [MI_Training_10.0	.umj					✓ LOCK
Edit Database			MI:Trainir	ng - Files				
Edit Files					Configurations			
Edit Units			Home Pages H	elp Pages Expor	ters Configurations			
Edit Unit System	ns		Configu	rations	Name -	•		
Edit Discrete Ty	/pes			lore	training.json			
Edit Parameters								
Edit Constants								
Edit Standard N	lames							
Edit Record Lin	k Groupe							
Edit Quality Pat	ings Systems							
Edit Casesh Mar	ings oystems							
Eult Search Mas	iKS							
Tables:								
⊕ MaterialUni	verse							
ProcessUni	verse							
🕀 Design Dat	a							
Metals Ped Tanala Sta	igree Katiaal Data							
 Tensile Sta Tensile Tes 	t Data							
Attribu	tes							
Subset	s	=						
Layout	s							
Expres Excel T	sions iomolate Definitio							
Search	Templates	115						
⊞ Report	Templates							
Restricted	Substances							
Legislations	and Lists		New Folder	Import Folder	Import Contents	Import Files	Export	Validate Configurations
GRANTA M	I Documentation	~	<			ш		>

Click Validate Configurations to verify the JSON syntax after importing a new configuration file.

You can specify only one configuration path in preferences.json. If you have multiple databases, create an "Explore" subfolder within each database, and store your configuration files for each database in the appropriate subfolder.

Note: If you have a search.json file from a previous version of MI:Explore, you can replace the file in the installation directory with your custom file, and then delete the configurations path from preferences.json. MI:Explore will now load your configurations from search.json. This is only recommended if you upgraded to MI:Explore 5.3 from MI:Explore 4.1 or earlier.

For further information, see the *MI:Explore Help*, and the *MI:Admin Help*.

6 MI: Viewer integration

To allow users to access MI:Viewer datasheets from MI:Explore, your MI:Viewer application URL must be specified in preferences.json using the viewerURL setting as follows:

{	
	"appName": "Explore",
	•••
	<pre>"viewerUrl": "http://my_miserver/mi/",</pre>

When specified, an **Access full data** button appears at the bottom of MI:Explore datasheets; users can click this to load the MI:Viewer datasheet for the selected record in a new browser tab.

For example:

l	Ult bearing strength with temperature	📥 Plot curves					
	Elongation	2 - 10 % strain					
	Hardness - Vickers	152 - 168 HV	-				
		Edit Access full o	lata Close				
	Mi Explore Aerosp	ace mater 🗙 🎦 /mi/data 🗙					
	\leftrightarrow \Rightarrow G \heartsuit	() /mi/datasheet.aspx?DBKEY=	MI_Training_10.0.0m	&change	UnitSystem =	=4&history=12527	_
	← ↑ ↓ ↓ 1						
	🔚 Aluminum	n, 7075, wrought, T6					
	General propert	ties					
	- Composition ov	verview					
	Ø	Composition (summary) Al/5.6Zn/2.5Mg/1.6CuCr					
	Restricted subs	stances					
	- Bio-data						
	Ø	RoHS (EU) compliant grades?	Yes				
	ø 👵	Food contact	Yes				
	- Mechanical pro	perties					
	Ø	Young's modulus	10 to 11	10^6 psi			
	Ø	Flexural modulus	10 to 11	10^6 psi	(estimate)		
	Ø	Shear modulus	3.77 to 4.06	10^6 psi			
	Ø	Poisson's ratio	0.325 to 0.335				
	Ø	Shape factor	16				
	Ø	Yield strength (elastic limit)	52.1 to 76.9	ksi		\mathbf{k}	
	0	Tensile strength	62.9 to 84.1	ksi			

If no MI:Viewer URL is specified in preferences.json, the Access full data button will not appear in the MI:Explore datasheet.

7 MI:Workflow integration

If MI:Workflow is installed in your system, MI:Explore can be integrated with it, allowing users to launch the Workflow Manager from a selected record within MI:Explore, and view the active workflows that are being progressed on that record.

Workflows can be accessed from MI:Explore if both of the following configuration steps are carried out:

1. The MI:Workflow URL must be specified in preferences.json, as follows:

```
{
    "appName": "Explore",
    "helpUrl": "http://support.grantadesign.com/resources/miexplore/5.3/en/help/index.htm",
    "viewerUrl": "http://my_miviewer_server/mi/",
    "workflowUrl": "http://my_miworkflow_server/mi_workflow/ui/",
```

2. The **Workflows** shortcut (right-click) menu option in MI:Explore must be enabled in the configuration file using the <u>workflowEnabled</u> setting:

"workflowEnabled": true	The Workflows option will appear in the menu.
<pre>"workflowEnabled": false</pre>	The Workflows option will not appear in the
	menu.

When both of these settings are configured – URL is specified and the menu item enabled – MI:Explore users will be able to launch the MI:Workflow Manager in a new browser tab from the shortcut (right-click) menu on a record in MI:Explore. For example:

		LIST	SCATT			
CORVES		LIST	SCATTE	RPLOT	CURVES	
Search		Nam	ie			
Search	Q	250	maraging	steel, mara	aged at 900F	
		Low	alloy steel	, AISI 4130	0, air melted, normalized	
Conoral proportion		Low	allow stool	rkflows), air melted, quenched & tempered	
General properties		dir	nin 🖪 Rui	n a report	¢, т6	
Designation		Alum	nin 📙 Exp	oort data	., T73	
Type your filter text here		Titan	niu 🚦 Sel	ect all	, Ti-6Al-4V, aged	
		Titan	ium, alpha	a-beta alloy	y, Ti-6Al-4V, annealed, generic	
Mi Workflow Man	ager C	; esh	E Low	alloy stee	el, AISI 4130, air melte 🗙	
	tart workflow					
My items All items S						
Available workflows						
Available workflows Appearance Approvals						
Available workflows Appearance Approvals Material Test Project Reque	est					

8 Teamcenter® integration

MI:Explore can query instances of assignment of records to parts in Teamcenter[®], where the assignments were made in the NX CAD application using MI:Materials Gateway. This is referred to as a "Where Used" query.

MI:Explore users can click **Find where used** for selected records and a "Where Used" query is sent to the Teamcenter Server; the results are displayed in MI:Explore, where they can be sorted and filtered, and exported to a file in CSV format.

Container 🔫	Component	▼ ▼ Source	▼ Material	▼ last_mod_use	owning_user ···
IU05-Turbine	stg6_hp_compr_circumf_disk_JUWT/A;1	CAD	Antimony	Select all X Select none	julian (julian) 🛓
IU05-Turbine	stg6_hp_compr_circumf_blade_JUWT/A;1	CAD	Antimony	Container (n)	julian (julian)
IU05-Turbine	stg5_hp_compr_circumf_disk_JUWT/A;1	CAD	Antimony	Source in)	julian (julian)
U05-Turbine	stg5_hp_compr_circumf_blade_JUWT/A;1	CAD	Antimony	Color (n)	julian (julian)
U05-Turbine	stg4_hp_compr_circumf_disk_JUWT/A;1	CAD	Antimony	D Process	julian (julian)
U05-Turbine	stg4_hp_compr_circumf_blade_JUWT/A;1	CAD	Antimony	Surface Treatment In) Coverage Iast mod user	julian (julian)
				CK Cancel	

The "Where Used" functionality in MI:Explore depends on MI:Connect being installed and configured to query your Teamcenter server for the assignments. For information on how to do this, see:

- MI:Connect Installation and Configuration Guide
- MI:Materials Gateway for Teamcenter Integration Guide

8.1 'Find where used' configuration in MI:Explore

Assignments in Teamcenter are of four distinct types; Material, Process, Finishing Process, and Color. The assignment type must be specified in the configuration file using recordType, for example:

"recordType": "Material",

If this value is missing, the *Where Used* query will not be available in the menu in MI:Explore. If present, you need to carry out the configuration in Section **8.2** below.

8.2 Where Used Teamcenter connection configuration

MI:Explore's ability to query instances of assignments of records to parts in Teamcenter uses MI:Connect to run the "Where Used" query in Teamcenter. MI:Connect is a general purpose communications service that allows clients, such as MI:Explore, to talk to 3rd party servers, such as PLM systems.

Configuration settings for MI:Connect and Teamcenter are located in the file service-settings.js in the MI:Explore installation at:

config-local/service-settings.js

8.2.1 Required MI:Connect server settings

The following settings <u>must</u> be configured by uncommenting and editing the values of the following constants:

gdlConnectServerProtocol	- Either http:/ or https:/
gdlConnectServerAddress	 The server name on which MI:Connect is installed. If installed on the same server as MI:Explore, this could be <i>localhost</i>.
	- The port number should be appended, if not default (80 for http, 443 for https).
adl Commont Common Dlugt manddage	

gdlConnectServerPluginsAddress

- The path of plugins within MI:Connect.

8.2.2 Additional settings

"Where Used" query results from Teamcenter are returned with some optional additional information about the parts in Teamcenter. The extra columns of Teamcenter data are specified using a preference in Teamcenter; see the *MI:Materials Gateway for Teamcenter Integration Guide* for details. To see the additional column values in the "Where Used" results in MI:Explore, the name of the Teamcenter Preferences must be specified in *service-settings.js* as follows:

gdlConnectTcAdditionalColumnsPreference	-	The name of the Preference in Teamcenter which specifies the additional columns attribute names.
gdlConnectTcDisplayNamesPreference	-	The name of the Preference in Teamcenter which specifies the additional columns display names.

8.2.3 Sample configuration

```
WebPlatform.Mi.Connect.connect
    .value("gdlConnectServerProtocol", "https:/")
    .value("gdlConnectServerAddress", "/localhost:443")
    .value("gdlConnectServerPluginsAddress", "/miconnect/plugins");
Webplatform.Mi.Connect.connectTc
    .value("gdlConnectTcAdditionalColumnsPreference", "ADDITIONAL_PREFERENCE_NAMES")
    .value("gdlConnectTcDisplayNamesPreference", "ADDITIONAL_PREFERENCE_DISPLAY_NAMES");
```

9 *MI:Explore configuration file reference*

The MI:Explore configuration files are stored in the database and managed using MI:Admin. Configuration settings in these files are specified in one or more JSON objects (enclosed in braces). Each configuration object includes a set of name/value pairs consisting of field name (case-sensitive, in double quotes), followed by a colon, followed by a value. An example configuration JSON file is shown in section **10**.

Setting	Mandatory/ Optional	Summary	Switch data view dialog setting
<u>key</u>	Mandatory	Defines an MI:Explore data view	Кеу
<u>table</u>	Mandatory	A GRANTA MI table	Table
<u>searchLayout</u>	Mandatory	Layout that defines the search filter attributes	Layout
<u>collectionsDisabled</u>	Optional	Enable/disable the Collections feature	Collections
<u>configSwitching</u>	Optional	Defines user ability to change and edit data views	N/A
<u>curves</u>	Optional	Enables/disables the functional data plotting feature, and defines the default axis properties for plots	Curves
<u>databaseKey</u>	Optional	A GRANTA MI database key (dbkey)	N/A
<u>dataSheetLayout</u>	Optional	Layout that defines the attributes shown on datasheets	Datasheet
<u>default</u>	Optional	Identifies the default configuration for the application, where more than one configuration object (key) is defined	N/A
description	Optional	Custom information about the data view	Description
<u>displayName</u>	Optional	Specifies the name displayed in the application header	Name
editableDatasheetLayout	Optional	Enables and disables data add/edit functionality, and specifies the layout used when adding or editing data.	Datasheet editing
exportersDisabled	Optional	Enables/disables the Exporters feature	Exporters
exportersUseCurrentUnitSystem	Optional	Specifies the unit system use when exporting data	Unit system
exporterApplicability	Optional	Filters the exporters available in MI:Explore	Applicability
groups	Optional	Specifies which group a data view belongs to	N/A
loadDataOnDemand	Optional	Specifies if data is loaded on startup or on demand	Load data on demand
logSliders	Optional	Use logarithmic or linear scale in slider controls	Search slider scale

Setting	Mandatory/ Optional	Summary	Switch data view dialog setting
newRecordLocation	Optional	Specifies the folder where new records are placed	N/A
newRecordTransformation	Optional	Defines how new records are named	N/A
newRecordPaddingOptions	Optional	Defines how new records are named	N/A
primaryImageAttributeName	Optional	Defines the primary image used on the THUMBNAILS tab	Image
<u>recordType</u>	Optional	Defines Teamcenter integration options	N/A
<u>reportsDisabled</u>	Optional	Enables/disables the Reports feature	Reports
<u>showBlanks</u>	Optional	Show/hide attributes with no value	Show empty attributes
<u>staticData</u>	Optional	Options for faster application startup	N/A
<u>subset</u>	Optional*	Subset into which new records will be placed. * Mandatory if an editable datasheet layout is specified	N/A
tabularEditingEnabled	Optional	Enables/disables ability to edit tabular data	Tabular data editing
workflowEnabled	Optional	Enables/disables MI:Workflow integration	N/A
<u>xyChart</u>	Optional	Defines the default axis properties for scatter plots	Scatter plot, X-axis, Y- axis, Axis selection

N/A means the setting cannot be configured from the Switch data view dialog.

9.1 key

(*Mandatory*) Identifies an MI:Explore data view, that is, a set of configuration options (title, database, table, layouts, and so on) for the application.

When more than one data view is defined in the configuration files, the key can be used as a query string appended to the MI:Explore application URL, identifying which set of configuration settings (database & table, layouts, and so on) to use when opening the application; see *Defining different data views*.

The key cannot contain spaces or special characters.

Example:

```
{
    "configurations": [
        {
            "key": "materialuniverse",
            ...
        },
        ]
}
```

The corresponding URL for the *materialuniverse* key in the example above would be:

http://myserver/explore/?search-config=materialuniverse

while the URL corresponding to the *alloys* key above would be:

http://myserver/explore/?search-config=alloys

9.2 table

(Mandatory) A table in the database that the configuration file is stored with. For example:

```
"table": "MaterialUniverse"
```

See also: Database, table, and subset to search

9.3 searchLayout

(*Mandatory*) A layout that defines which attributes are available for filtering search results in MI:Explore. The layout must be stored in the table specified in <u>table</u>.

Example:

```
"searchLayout": "Stainless alloys"
```

Search layouts with a large number of attributes will affect application startup time, as data for each attribute included in the layout has to be fetched from the database. To optimize startup time, you may wish to create multiple configurations (using multiple <u>keys</u>) on the same database and table, each with a smaller number of targeted search attributes.

Note that search layouts should not be confused with *search templates*, which are used to specify pre-defined search criteria (attributes and meta-attributes) to be applied when searching for data in MI:Viewer.

See also: Search panel

© Granta Design 2018

9.4 collectionsDisabled

(*Optional*) A Boolean that specifies whether or not the Collections feature is turned on in the application.

- true: the Collections feature is disabled, and no Collections tab will appear in MI:Explore.
- false: the Collections feature is enabled, and a Collections tab will appear alongside the Search panel in MI:Explore.

Example:

```
"collectionsDisabled": false
```

If collectionsDisabled is not present in the configuration file, collections will be **enabled**.

See also: Collections

9.5 configSwitching

(Optional) Specifies options for a user to change or edit a data view.

- hidden: disables the Switch data view dialog for users
- keyOnly: users can switch data view but cannot edit a data view
- keyInGroup: users can switch data view only between views in the same group as the default view, and cannot edit a data view
- keyOrData: users can switch data view and change database, table, and layout, but cannot edit advanced options
- advanced: users can switch and edit a data view

The configSwitching setting is specified in (and read from) the default data view in the configuration file. If there is no default data view, this setting should be specified in the first data view in the configuration file.

If configSwitching is not specified, then it defaults to advanced.

Example:

```
"configSwitching": "keyInGroup",
"groups": ["metals"]
```

This configuration will only show data views in the metals group.

See also: Edit data view configuration using MI:Explore

9.6 curves

(Optional) An array of objects that specify various functional data plot properties:

yAttribute

The attribute shown on the plot Y-axis by default. If missing, the first attribute found will be used.

xParameter

The parameter shown on the plot X-axis by default. If missing, the first parameter found will be used.

xAxisLogarithmic

A Boolean which specifies the scale used initially for the X-axis.

yAxisLogarithmic

A Boolean which specifies the scale used initially for the Y-axis.

Example:

```
"curves": {
    "yAttribute": "Stress-Strain",
    "xParameter": "Strain",
    "xAxisLogarithmic": false,
    "yAxisLogarithmic": true
}
```

Note that if load data on demand is enabled:

- functional attributes will only be visible on the Curves panel if the attribute is marked as searchable in the MI:Admin database schema.
- axis scale is always displayed as linear (i.e. "xAxisLogarithmic": false) regardless of configuration file setting.

See also: Curves

9.7 databaseKey

(*Optional*) The database key of the GRANTA MI database containing the data to be searched in MI:Explore. If databaseKey is not specified, the value defaults to the key of the database that the configuration file is stored with. Specify a databaseKey to explicitly assign the data view to a database, or if you have configurations for different databases saved in the same configuration file.

Database keys are not case-sensitive in GRANTA MI. For example:

"databaseKey": "MI_Training_11.0.0m"

See also: Database, table, and subset to search

9.8 dataSheetLayout

(Optional) A layout that defines which attributes are included on MI:Explore datasheets.

The layout must be stored in the table specified in table. This can be a different layout from the one specified in searchLayout, for example, you might select a layout that included all of the attributes defined in the table.

Example:

"dataSheetLayout": "Polymers"

See also: Search panel

9.9 default

(*Optional*) Where the configuration file includes more than one configuration object (see key), this field is used to identify the default configuration for MI:Explore ("default": true). If no query string is specified in the URL, this will be the configuration that is used on starting the application

If set to true, this is the configuration that will be loaded when no key is specified. If more than one configuration is set to "default": true, the first one in the file will be used.

Example:

```
"key": "matuni",
"default": true,
"displayName" : "Explore Material Universe",
```

See also: <u>Defining different data views</u>

9.10 description

(Optional) Information to help you identify the data view when using the Switch data view dialog.

ing	Switch data view	N	×
LE	Switch to:	MI:Training Materials	Clear
	Key	training-materials	
	Description	Explore MaterialUniverse data in the M	I:Training database
	Details		
ł	Database	MI:Training •	

Example:

```
"description" : " Explore MaterialUniverse data in the MI:Training database"
```

See also: Defining different data views

9.11 displayName

The name displayed in the header of the MI:Explore application.

```
      Mi Explore Material Universe
      Mi Explore Test Records

      Example:
```

"displayName" : "Explore Material Universe"

See also: Application title

9.12 editableDatasheetLayout

(*Optional*) Enables and disables data add/edit functionality in MI:Explore, and specifies the layout used for adding/editing data. The layout must be stored in the table specified in the table setting.

Example:

```
"editableDatasheetLayout": "All attributes"
```

See also: Data add and edit options, Datasheets

9.13 exportersDisabled

(*Optional*) A Boolean that specifies whether or not the **Export** option is available on the MI:Explore toolbar.

- true: the Export option is not available in the toolbar
- false: the Export option is available in the toolbar (default)

Example:

"exportersDisabled": false

See also: Export options

9.14 exportersUseCurrentUnitSystem

(*Optional*) A Boolean that specifies whether FEA exporters, if enabled, use the unit system currently specified in MI:Explore Preferences, or use the unit system specified in the exporter configuration.

- true: the unit system specified in the MI:Explore Preferences will be used
- false: the unit system specified in the exporter will be used (default)

Example:

"exportersUseCurrentUnitSystem": false

See also: Units

© Granta Design 2018

9.15 exporterApplicability

(Optional) Filters the exporters which will appear in the Available exporters list.

When this setting is included in the configuration file, the specified value is compared with the Applicability tag value specified in the exporter configuration .exp file (for example, *MIViewer* or *MIMaterialsGateway*); only exporters with the same value will be listed.

Example:

"exporterApplicability": "MIViewer"

See also: Hiding application-specific exporters

9.16 groups

(*Optional*) Specifies the group or groups that the data view belongs to. Data views in the Switch data view dialog are arranged by groups. If configSwitching is set to keyInGroup, then only the data views in the same group as the default data view will be available.

A data view may belong to one group, many groups, or no groups.

Example:

"groups": ["Metals", "On Demand"]

The groups value must always be specified in an array.

See also: configSwitching

9.17 loadDataOnDemand

(Optional) Specifies whether data is loaded only when required (on demand), or whether all data is loaded on startup.

- true: data is loaded on demand
- false: all data is loaded on startup

Example:

"loadDataOnDemand": true

See also: Load data on demand

9.18 logSliders

(*Optional*) Specifies whether or not slider controls in the **Search** panel are logarithmic when the data spread is larger than one order of magnitude.

- true: slider controls will use a logarithmic scale
- false: slider controls will always use a linear scale

Example:

"logSliders": true

See also: Logarithmic sliders

9.19 newRecordLocation

(*Optional*) newRecordLocation specifies the folder in the database where new records are placed when adding records in MI:Explore.

Users can create new records in MI:Explore if

- They have write access to the database, and
- An editableDatasheetLayout Is specified in the configuration file.

Example:

"newRecordLocation": "Metals and alloys/New records/",

The specified folder will be created if it does not already exist.

If newRecordLocation is not specified, new records will be placed in the top-level (root) folder.

The path specified in newRecordLocation can include attribute names; the value of the attribute will then be substituted in the new record path. Attribute-based path elements are enclosed in curly brackets {}. For example:

```
"newRecordLocation": "Metals and alloys/New folder/",
"newRecordLocation": "Metal and alloys/New folder/{AttributeName}",
```

The data (attribute) types supported for use as path placement attributes are:

- Integer
- Point (but units are ignored)
- Range (but units are ignored)
- Discrete
- Date
- Short text. Alphanumeric characters other than underscore (_), dash (-), period (.), forward slash (/), space, and left/right parentheses () are stripped out.

Multi-value point and multi-value discrete types cannot be used as path placement attributes.

Example:

To place new records in the folder determined by the value of the Discrete attribute *Base*, as specified by the user :

"newRecordLocation": "Metals and alloys/NEW RECORDS/{Base}"

A new titanium record named New alloy 1, will be created as follows:



To create new records and folders, users must have write permission to the parent folder, in the example above, *Metals and alloys*.

If an invalid attribute name is given, it will be interpreted literally, that is, it will fall back to a fixed path. For example, the following are equivalent:

"newRecordLocation": "Metals/New records/{invalidAttributeName}",
"newRecordLocation": "Metals/New records/invalidAttributeName",

See also: Placement of new records

9.20 newRecordTransformation, newRecordPaddingOptions

(Optional) When new records are created using MI:Explore, properties of the new record, such as its name, and/or a unique reference number attribute, can be automatically generated. This is configured using the newRecordTransformation and newRecordPaddingOptions keys in the configuration file.

See Section 3.14, Options for autonaming of new records, for examples showing how these configuration options can be combined in different ways.

9.20.1 newRecordTransformation

(*Optional*) The value of the newRecordTransformation key is an array of optional record transforms, which may be used in any combination to construct the new record name.

Record Transform	Function	Standard Names	Mapped to attribute of type	Required ?
Counter	Increments the value of an integer attribute	Counter	Integer	Y
	Takes two attribute values	Id_Prefix	Discrete	N
Id	and concatenates them into a	ld_Suffix	Integer, Short text	N
	third attribute value	Id	Short text	Y
PercendNameConceptonaton	Concatenates two attributes		Integer, Short text, Discrete	Y
Recordinaliteconcatenator	record name	Name_Suffix	Integer, Short text, Discrete	N

The record transforms are applied in the order they are specified.

Counter

Increments an integer attribute with every new record created.

When this transform is included, an integer attribute with the standard name **Counter** is populated on the newly-created record, with a value that increments by 1 for each new record created.

Id

Concatenates two attribute values into a third attribute.

When this transform is included, a Short text attribute with the standard name **Id** is populated automatically when a new record is created. Its value will be a concatenation of the attributes with the standard names **Id_Prefix** and **Id_Suffix**.

RecordNameConcatenator

Concatenates two attribute values into the record name.

When this transform is included, the new record name is automatically populated; the user will not be able to type in a record name. The new record name will be a hyphen-separated concatenation of the attributes with the standard names **Name_Prefix** and **Name_Suffix**. If **Name_Suffix** is omitted, then there will be no hyphen.

Example:

```
"newRecordTransformation": [ "Counter", "Id",
"RecordNameConcatenator" ],
```

9.20.2 newRecordPaddingOptions

The newRecordPaddingOptions key contains two optional values:

padLength

When used in conjunction with the Id record transform, this value will be used to pad the number out to the specified width. For example:

- 1, padded to a length of 6: 000001
- **1891**, padded to a length of 6: **001891**

padString

If specified, this string is used as the padding character.

- If padLength is unspecified, there will be no padding.
- If padLength is specified, but padString is not, the Id_Suffix will be padded with "0".
- If both padLength and padString are specified, **Id_Suffix** will be padded to padLength with the padString.

Example:

```
"newRecordPaddingOptions": {
    "padLength": 6,
    "padString": "0" }
```

9.21 primaryImageAttributeName

(*Optional*) The attribute that defines the primary image used on the MI:Explore THUMBNAILS tab. For example:

```
"primaryImageAttributeName": "BH curve"
```

See also Thumbnails

9.22 recordType

(*Optional*) Defines the Teamcenter assignment type for Where Used queries, where the record type value must be one of:

- Material
- Process
- FinishingProcess
- Color

Example:

"recordType": "Material"

See also Teamcenter® integration

9.23 reportsDisabled

(Optional) A Boolean that specifies whether or not the **Report** option is available in MI:Explore.

- true: the Report option is not available in the toolbar
- false: the Report option is available in the toolbar (default)

Example:

"reportsDisabled": false

See also <u>Reports</u>

9.24 showBlanks

(*Optional*) A Boolean that specifies whether or not attributes that do not have a value are shown when users are viewing datasheets in MI:Explore.

- true: Show attributes with no value (*default*)
- false: Hide attributes with no value

If not specified, the default behavior is to show attributes with no values. Note that this option only applies when viewing datasheets; attributes that do not have a value are always shown when users are editing datasheets.

Example:

```
"showBlanks": false
```

See also: Showing/hiding attributes with no value

9.25 staticData

(Optional) Specifies one or more static (reference) data files. For example:

```
"staticData": [
   "./MIL-standards.json",
   "./Patents-coatings.json"
],
```

This should only be used if MI:Explore is configured to load data on startup (see <u>loadDataOnDemand</u>).

See also: Using static data files for faster startup

9.26 subset

(Optional) Specifies a subset containing records of interest.

- If specified, search and filter operations in MI:Explore will be limited to only the records in this subset.
- If no subset is specified, search and filter operations will be applied to all records in the table.

The subset must be defined in the table specified in <u>table</u>.

Example:

```
"table": "MaterialUniverse",
"subset": "Magnetic materials",
```

Where users have the ability to add records (see <u>editableDatasheetLayout</u>), then a subset must be specified; all new records will be placed in this subset.

See also: Database, table, and subset to search

9.27 tabularEditingEnabled

(Optional) A Boolean that specifies whether or not tabular data is editable in MI:Explore.

- true: tabular data is editable
- false: tabular data is not editable (default)

Example:

```
"tabularEditingEnabled": true
```

See also: Viewing and editing tabular data

9.28 workflowEnabled

(*Optional*) A Boolean that specifies whether or not to launch the MI Workflow Manager from MI:Explore. If not specified, the default behavior is not to show the menu option.

- true: Show menu option to launch Workflow
- false: Hide the menu option to launch Workflow (default)

Example:

"workflowEnabled": false

See also: MI:Workflow integration

9.29 xyChart

(Optional) An array of objects that specify various properties for scatter plots:

xAttribute

The attribute shown on the plot X-axis by default.

yAttribute

The attribute shown on the plot Y-axis by default.

xAxisLogarithmic

A Boolean which specifies the scale used initially for the plot X-axis.

yAxisLogarithmic

A Boolean which specifies the scale used initially for the plot Y-axis.

preventAxisChange

A Boolean that controls whether or not the Settings panel is available to users. If *true*, MI:Explore users will be unable to change any plot settings (X- or Y- axis attributes or scale).

Example:

```
"xyChart": {
    "xAttribute": "Young's modulus",
    "yAttribute": "Yield strength (elastic limit)",
    "preventAxisChange": false,
    "xAxisLogarithmic": true,
    "yAxisLogarithmic": true
}
```



See also: Scatter plots

10 Sample configuration file

This is a sample JSON file that can be stored and used with the MI Training database.

```
{"configurations": [
     {
            "key": "gdl-sample-aerospace",
            "displayName" : "Explore Aerospace materials",
            "description": "Explore Aerospace materials in the
MaterialUniverse database",
            "default": true,
            "table": "MaterialUniverse",
            "searchLayout": "Aerospace materials",
            "dataSheetLayout": "Aerospace materials",
            "editableDatasheetLayout": "Aerospace materials",
            "subset": "Aerospace materials",
            "newRecordLocation": "From Default",
            "logSliders": true,
            "xyChart": {
                   "xAttribute": "Young's modulus",
                   "yAttribute": "Tensile strength",
                   "preventAxisChange": false,
                   "xAxisLogarithmic": false,
                   "yAxisLogarithmic": false
            },
             "curves": {
                   "yAttribute": "Young's modulus",
                   "xParameter": "Temperature",
                   "xAxisLogarithmic": false,
                   "yAxisLogarithmic": true
            },
            "collectionsDisabled": true,
            "showBlanks": false,
            "reportsDisabled": false,
            "exportersDisabled": false,
            "exporterApplicability": "MIViewer",
            "tabularEditingEnabled": true,
            "groups": []
     },
      {
            "key": "gdl-sample-rs",
            "displayName": "Explore Restricted Substances",
            "description": "Explore Restricted Substances data ",
            "default": false,
            "table": "Restricted Substances",
            "subset": "All substances",
            "searchLayout": "All substances",
            "dataSheetLayout": "All substances",
            "logSliders": true,
            "collectionsDisabled": false,
            "reportsDisabled": false,
            "exportersDisabled": true,
            "showBlanks": false,
```

```
"tabularEditingEnabled": true,
              "loadDataOnDemand": true,
              "groups": []
      },
      {
              "key": "gdl-sample-polymers",
              "displayName" : "Explore Polymers",
"description": "Explore Polymers data from the
MaterialUniverse database and loading data on demand",
              "default": false,
              "table": "MaterialUniverse",
              "searchLayout": "Polymers",
"dataSheetLayout": "Polymers",
              "editableDatasheetLayout": "Polymers",
              "subset": "Polymers",
              "logSliders": true,
              "xyChart": {
                      "xAttribute": "Compressive strength",
                      "yAttribute": "Elongation",
"preventAxisChange": false,
"xAxisLogarithmic": false,
                      "yAxisLogarithmic": true
              },
              "collectionsDisabled": true,
              "showBlanks": false,
              "reportsDisabled": false,
              "exportersDisabled": true,
              "tabularEditingEnabled": true,
              "newRecordLocation": "NEW POLYMERS",
              "loadDataOnDemand": true,
              "groups": []
      }
      ]
}
```

Appendix A. Troubleshooting

A.1 View the log file

Event information for MI:Explore, which may be useful when troubleshooting problems, is written to the Service Layer trace log file located here:

 $C:\linetpub\wwwroot\mi_servicelayer\logs\MIServiceLayer.TraceMessages.csv$

This is a CSV file which can be opened using Microsoft[®] Excel[®] or another program that reads files in CSV format. For each event logged, the file includes information about the application connecting to the Service Layer, the event type and description, the IP address of the client, and client browser details.

A.2 Compatibility View settings in IE11

When you access MI:Explore in IE11, if Compatibility View is enabled for intranet sites, you may see a message saying "Incompatibile browser detected".

To disable Compatibility View, on the **Tools** menu, click **Compatibility View settings**, and clear **Display intranet sites in Compatibility View**. If this option is unavailable, you can access MI:Explore in IE11 using the full URL e.g. http://<mi_server>.<networkdomain>.local/explore/

A.3 Enable pop-ups in your browser

If your browser is configured to block pop-ups then some features in MI:Explore, such as Reports, may be blocked.

To enable pop-ups in Google Chrome:

- 1. Go to Settings.
- 2. Scroll down to Advanced, and under Privacy and security, click Content settings.
- 3. Click **Popups**. Edit the settings to either allow pop-ups globally, or add the server name on which MI:Explore is installed e.g. http://<mi_server>/explore/

To enable pop-ups in Firefox:

- 1. Go to **Options**.
- 2. Click Privacy and Security, and scroll down to Permissions.
- 3. Either clear the **Block pop-up windows** option, or click **Exceptions** and add the server name on which MI:Explore is installed e.g. http://<mi_server>/explore/

Appendix B. Using static data files for faster startup

MI:Explore can be configured to load data on demand, to improve the startup time for large databases. Alternatively, if you would prefer to load data on startup, you can speed up the application startup time for large databases using *static data files*.

Databases typically contain static data, such as reference data that does not need to be modified, as well as data that can be edited. To make MI:Explore startup time faster, a copy of any static data can be stored in file(s) outside of the GRANTA MI database; the data in static data files is an exact duplicate of the "live" data in the GRANTA MI database and is used only on application startup: operations that rely on the real data, such as *Where Used* and viewing full datasheets, use the source data from GRANTA MI.

Static data may be viewed, searched, and plotted in the same way as data stored in the database; it cannot be edited, and it cannot be access-controlled.

To configure MI:Explore to use static data files, you specify the file path(s) in search.json. using the staticData setting. For example:

```
"staticData": [
   "./MIL-standards.json",
   "./Patents-coatings.json"
],
```

Contact Granta Support for more information about implementing static data files for MI:Explore.